
Table of Contents
1  November 2018 Meeting Agenda
2  Draft NFWB Meeting Minutes - October 2018
3  Personnel Actions
4  2018-11-001 - Cooperative Chemical Bid
5  Cooperative Chemical Bid Board Memo and Official Tally Sheet
6  2018-11-002 -  Settle National Grid
7  2018-11-003 -  Chemical Tank 216 Repairs
8  Chemical Tank Repair Quote
9  2018-11-004 -  Wet Well Valve Repair
10  Wet Well Valve Repair Quote
11  2018-11-005 -  SCADA Lift Station Work
12  SCADA Proposal
13  2018-11-006 -  2019 Board Meeting Schedule
14  Working Session & Regular Meeting Dates 2019
15  2018-11-007 - Granulated Activated Carbon Bid
16  Granular Activated Carbon Agenda Item and Tally Sheet 111618
17  2018-11-008 - Accept $2.76 Million WIIA Grant
18  EFC Letter RE WIIA Grant Award
19  2018-11-009 - Authorizing Contractual Assistance - Grade 4 License
20  2018-11-010 - Authorizing Procurement of Mobile Meter Data Collector
21  Meter Data Collector Costs
22  2018-11-011 - 2019 Communications Services
23  2018-11-012 - Settle Bill Dispute with Ronald Cunningham
24  2018-11-013 - Settle Bill Dispute with Jabril Shareef
25  2018-11-014 - Settle Bill Dispute with Tamar Skrlin
26  2018-11-015 - WTP Residuals Disposal
27  Award Recommendation Letter
28  2018-11-016 - Vehicle Marking and GPS
29  2018-11-017 - Vehicle Use Policy
30  Draft of Board Adopted NFWB Motor Vehicle Use Policy

2
6

14
15
16
29
30
31
32
33
34
36
38
39
40
41
43
44
46
48
50
53
55
57
59
61
63
65
67
68

Packet Page 1



Page 1 of 4 

Regular Session of the 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
November 26, 2018   5:00 PM at 

Michael C. O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plant 

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 

a. Forster ___Kimble ____ Larkin____ Leffler___ O’Callaghan____ 

b. Letters and Communications 

c. Public Comment (All speakers must register with the Chairperson 
prior to roll call and are limited to three minutes per person – total 
time for all speakers may not exceed one hour)   

d. Approval of Minutes from October 29, 2018 

2. Executive Director  

3. Director of Operations 

4. Superintendent 

a. Third Meter Data Collector 

5. Engineering 

a. WWTP FEMA Project Funding Update 

Packet Page 2



Page 2 of 4 

6. Personnel Items/Director of Administrative Services 

a. Staff Requested: 

Motion to Approve Personnel Actions and Report. 

7. Information Technology (IT) Dept. 

8. Financial Reports – Director of Financial Services 

a. Draft Leadership Recommended 2019 Budget 
b. Draft Leadership Recommended 2019 Rates, Fees, and Other Charges 

9. Reports 

a. Questions Regarding O&M Report for October (if any) 
b. Safety 

10.   General Counsel and Secretary 

11.  From the Chairman 

12. Resolutions  

2018-11-001 – AWARDING BID FOR CHEMICALS FOR WATER AND 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS 

a. November 5, 2018 Memorandum and Bid Tally 

2018-11-002 – AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF LITIGATION WITH 
NATIONAL GRID OVER DAMAGE TO SWITCHGEAR LOCATED 
NEAR 300 – 3RD STREET 

2018-11-003 – REPAIRS TO CHEMICAL STORAGE TANK 216 
a. An-Cor DKG Quote No. 180489, November 12, 2018 

Packet Page 3



Page 3 of 4 

2018-11-004 – REPAIR OF WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
18 INCH WET WELL VALVE 

a. Mollenberg-Betz Quote No. HJ2018-140, October 31, 2018  

2018-10-005 – ADDING ADDITIONAL LIFT STATION SCADA 
FUNCTIONALITY 

a. Zeller AC&E Proposal No. 181338, November 6, 2018 

2018-11-006 – 2019 MEETINGS 
a. Working Session and Regular Meeting Schedule 

2018-10-007 – AWARDING BID FOR GRANULATED ACTIVE CARBON 
SUPPLY AND REMOVAL 

b. November 16, 2018 Memorandum and Bid Tally 

2018-11-008 -- ACCEPTING $2,760,000 NYS WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENT ACT GRANT 

a. Grant Acknowledgement and Acceptance Letter 

2018-11-009 – AUTHORIZING CONTRACTUAL ASSISTANCE – 
GRADE 4 LICENSE 

2018-11-010 -- AUTHORIZING PROCUREMENT OF MOBILE 
METER DATA COLLECTOR APPARATUS 

a. Equipment and Installation Quotes 

2018-11-011 – 2019 COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

2018-11-012 – AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH 
RONALD CUNNINGHAM  

2018-11-013 -- AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH 
JABRIL SHAREEF  

2018-11-014 -- AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH 
TAMAR SKRLIN  

2018-11-015 – AWARD BID FOR PICKUP, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL 
OF ALUMINUM-BASED RESIDUALS FROM WATER TREATMENT 
PLANT 

a. November 21, 2018 Award Recommendation Letter and Bid Tally 

2018-11-016 -- VEHICLE MARKING AND GPS TRACKING 

2018-11-017 -- MOTOR VEHICLE USE POLICY 
a. Draft of Board Adopted Motor Vehicle Use Policy 

Packet Page 4



Page 4 of 4 

13. Unfinished Business  

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

15. Executive Session  

16. Adjournment of Meeting 

Packet Page 5



 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Regular Session of the 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
October 29, 2018   5:00 PM at 

Michael C. O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plant 

 
 

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:02 p.m. 

a. Forster _P__Kimble __P__ Larkin__P__ Leffler_P__ O’Callaghan__P__ 

b. Letters and Communications 

A letter received from the Niagara County Department of Health, Environmental 

Health Division, regarding the inspection that took place at the NFWB on 

September 26, 2018.  The letter indicated that there were no SPDES related violations 

noted at the time of the inspection and that the NFWB is in substantial compliance 

with the terms and conditions of its SPDES permit.   

c. Public Comment (All speakers must register with the Chairperson 

prior to roll call and are limited to three minutes per person – total 

time for all speakers may not exceed one hour)   

Ellen Shareef spoke regarding her high water bill at her rental property, located at 

411 Hyde Park Blvd. Niagara Falls, NY.  Ms. Shareef stated that over the course of 

March and April 2018, her water bill was $11,793.00. She stated she contacted the 

NFWB in May and was advised to present her discrepancy at the next board meeting; 

in the meantime, her meter was read by the NFWB on May 1
st  

and a break in her 

water line was identified but there was not any water damage; she had turned the water 

off at her property to try and avoid any further charges on May 2
nd

.  Ms. Shareef states 

that her bill does not outline the usage or if the meter has been read, it simply states the 

cost.  Ms. Shareef is looking for consideration with her water bill, explaining she is 

would like to rent the property but can also not afford to pay her water bill.  

Ms. Walker explains that Ms. Shareef should disregard any correspondence since her 

last appearance in front of the board.  The Board directed Mr. Costello to further 

investigate this matter and be in contact with Ms. Shareef. 

Tamar Skrlin is seeking assistance with her high water bill from her rental property 

located at 1317 Michigan Ave. Niagara Falls, NY.  Ms. Skrlin states she has 

Packet Page 6



 

Page 2 of 8 

accumulated a $917.00.  She states she completed the required paperwork but her 

request was denied.  The Board directed Mr. Costello to further investigate this matter 

and be in contact with Ms. Skrlin. 

Ronald Cunningham is seeking assistance with his high water bill from his 

commercial rental property located at 1616 15
th

 St. Niagara Falls, NY. 

Mr. Cunningham states that his commercial rental property has been vacant since he 

purchased the property, yet has acuminated a water bill that is over $3,000.00.  The 

Board directed Mr. Costello to further investigate this matter and be in contact with 

Mr. Cunningham. 

d. Approval of Minutes from September 24, 2018 

 
Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve 

Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__abstain__ 

Motion was carried 4-0 

 

 

2. Executive Director  

 

There was nothing new to discuss from the Executive Director at this time. 

 

 

3. Director of Operations 

a. Projects at WWTP 

b. RFP Resolutions 

 

There was nothing new to discuss from the Director of Operations at this time.  

 

 

4. Superintendent 

 

Mr. Wright states the NFWB currently has 159 private fire hydrants and 172 fire loops. 

Mr. Forster states this is useful information in order to determine a possible fee 

increase for these services.  

 

 

5. Engineering 

a. Update regarding Niagara Air Reserve Station water main project 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Packet Page 7



 

Page 3 of 8 

6. Personnel Items/Director of Administrative Services 

 

a. Staff Requested: 

  

Motion to Approve Personnel Actions and Report dated  

October 22, 2018. 

 

Motion to approve Section II, Item 1 of the personnel actions report by Ms. Leffler and 

seconded by Ms. Larkin 
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was carried 5-0 

 

b. Invoice/Bill Management System 

 

 

7. Information Technology (IT) Dept. 

 

 

8. Financial Reports – Director of Financial Services 

a. 2019 Budget Update 

 

Discussion regarding status of 2019 Budget, draft budget to be presented to Board for 

November 2018 work session.  Anticipated that hearing on rates, fees, and other 

charges will be scheduled at November 2018 regular meeting and conducted on night 

of December 2018 work session. 

 

 

9. Reports 

a. Questions Regarding O&M Report for September (if any) 

b. Safety 

 

 

10.   General Counsel and Secretary 

 

There was nothing new to discuss from General Counsel at this time.  

 

 

11.  From the Chairman 

 

There was nothing new to discuss from the Chairman at this time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Packet Page 8



 

Page 4 of 8 

12. Resolutions  

 

2018-10-001 – VEHICLE ASSET ADMINISTRATION 

 

Motion to table by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin 
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was tabled 5-0 

 

2018-10-002 – CERTAIN EMPLOYEES TO USE TIME MANAGEMENT 

SYSTEM EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 

 

Motion to table by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Mr. Forster 
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__N__ 

Motion was tabled 4-1 

 

2018-10-003 – AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR AECOM TO PERFORM 

WORK REQUIRED BY CONSENT ORDER 

1. October 12, 2018 Proposal 

 

Motion to table by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was tabled 5-0 

 

2018-10-004 – APPROVING 2019 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

1. Schedule of 2019 Holidays 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-005 – SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

1. Policy 

2. Complaint Form 

 

Motion to approve by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-006 – AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF ANGELA ZITTO  

CLAIM FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE AT 2647 PIERCE AVENUE 

1. Notice of Claim 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble 
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

Packet Page 9



 

Page 5 of 8 

2018-10-007 – AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR 18” DIAMETER 

INFLUENT PIPING REPAIR 

1. Mollenberg-Betz Quote No. HJ2018-133 

2. Photograph of Pipe 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-008 – AUTHORIZING FUNDS TO REPLACE WET WELL 

VALVE PLATFORMS 

1. Mollenberg-Betz Quote No. HJ2018-136 

 

Motion to table by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was tabled 5-0 

 

2018-10-009 – REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE 115,000 VOLT SWITCH 

1. Ferguson Electric Invoice No. 132406 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble 
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-010 – PERSONNEL WHO MAY DISCUSS WATER BOARD 

ACCOUNTS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

 

Motion to table by Mr. Forster and seconded by Mr. O’Callaghan   
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__N__ Leffler_N__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was tabled 5-0 

 

2018-10-011 – ANNUAL REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT POLICY  

AND ADOPTION OF REVISED POLICY 

1. Procurement Policy Dated October 29, 2018 

 

Motion to table by Mr. Forster and seconded by Mr. O’Callaghan 
Forster _Y__Kimble __N_ Larkin__N__ Leffler_N__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was not approved 

 

Motion to approve by Ms. Larkin and seconded by Ms. Leffler  
Forster _N__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__N__ 

Motion was approved 3-2 

 

At Mr. Costello’s request, the Board discussed approval of procurements over $10,000 

pursuant to pre-bid, indefinite quantity, indefinite delivery contracts.  The Board wants 

to approve these. 

 

Packet Page 10



 

Page 6 of 8 

2018-10-012 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR SCUM PUMP, FINE SCREEN TRAVELING 

BRIDGE, AND ISOLATION PLATE GUIDE IMPROVEMENTS AT 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT (PROJECT NO. 1) 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-013 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR GORGE PUMPING STATION REHABILITATION 

PROJECT (PROJECT NO. 2) 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-014 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO SCREENINGS AND GRIT 

TRANSPORT EQUIPMENT, POLYMER EQUIPMENT, AND 

DEWATERING CONTROLS AT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

(PROJECT NO. 3) 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

 

2018-10-015 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR GRANULATED ACTIVATED CARBON AND 

CARBON FILTER SUPPORT GRAVEL REPLACEMENT AT 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT (PROJECT NO. 4) 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-016 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEM AND LIGHTING 

IMPROVEMENTS AT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

(PROJECT NO. 5) 

 

Motion to approve by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Mr. Forster  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__N__ 

Motion was approved 4-1 

 

Packet Page 11



 

Page 7 of 8 

2018-10-017 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR CRITICAL HEATING AND VENTILATION 

IMPROVEMENTS AT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

(PROJECT NO. 7) 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__N__ 

Motion was approved 4-1 

 

2018-10-018 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR REPLACEMENT OF PLANT WATERLINE,  

PROCESS WATERLINE, AND INTERIOR PROCESS PIPING  

AT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT (PROJECT NO. 9) 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

2018-10-019 – DIRECTING CLARK PATTERSON LEE TO SERVE AS 

WATER BOARD’S REPRESENTATIVE FOR DESIGN AND BIDDING 

OF CAPITAL PROJECTS AT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble to approve 
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

Walk-on Resolution 2018-10-020 

Approving Memorandum of Understanding with United Steel Workers 

 

Motion to walk-on by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin  
Forster _Y__Kimble __Y_ Larkin__Y__ Leffler_Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 

Motion was approved 5-0 

 

 

13. Unfinished Business  

 

Mr. Forster questions the winter tires on the NFWB fleet; would like clarification if the 

winter tires were included under our contract with Enterprise. 

 

Mr. Drury confirms that the winter tires were included under our contract with 

Enterprise. 

 

Packet Page 12



 

Page 8 of 8 

Mr. Forster would like the cost breakdown of the lease program along with fuel 

consumption to be provided at the next board meeting. 

 

 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

 

There was no new business or additional items to be discussed at this time. 

 

 

15. Executive Session  

 

Motion by Ms. Larkin and seconded by Ms. Leffler to enter into executive session for 

the following at 7:30 p.m.: (1) discuss matters related to collective bargaining 

negotiations; (2) discuss the employment history of a particular person; (3) discuss 

matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, 

suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular person. 

 

 

16. Adjournment of Meeting 

 

 Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to adjourn at 8:18 p.m. 

Packet Page 13



I.  PERSONNEL ACTIONS RECOMMEND TO HIRE
Line Item Number Position Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

II. RECOMMENDED PROMOTION / MOVE / APPOINTMENT 
Line Item Number Position Type of labor move Change in pay rate or grade

1 Provisional Operator Trainee Inter Department Transfer
Current Grade 1.1.0 (Unit 01) to 

Garde 9.1.0 (Unit 02)

IV. BOARD NOTIFICATION OF OTHER MOVEMENT (CBA BID, MCSB APPOINTMENT, LEGAL STATUS CHANGE)

Name Position & type of labor move Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

V.  OTHER ACTIVITY

Dennis Kirkland Operator (SOS) WWTP / Operations SOS

Bill Wright Superintendent Outside Operations Salary

Niagara Falls Water Board
  Personnel Actions and Report

Monday, November October, 22, 2018

Recommended Moves by the Director of Administrative Services

OTHER PERSONNEL ACTIVITY FOR BOARD NOTIFICATION 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION / AUTHORITY

Decrease in base wages 

Returning to work (with restrictions)

Returned to work

Packet Page 14



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-001 

AWARDING BID FOR CHEMICALS  
FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) was assisted by the City of 
Niagara Falls Purchasing Department in soliciting bids for chemicals necessary for the operation 
of the Water Board’s Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants, with said procurement in 
cooperation with the Niagara County Water District, the Cities of Lockport and 
North Tonawanda, and the Towns of Grand Island, Lewiston, and Newfane; and 

WHEREAS, City of Niagara Falls Purchasing has tabulated the results and highlighted 
the lowest responsible bidder meeting the specifications for each of the necessary chemicals, as 
described in the attached memorandum dated November 5, 2018;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby awards its bids for chemicals to 
each of the companies, and at the prices, indicated on the attached memorandum dated 
November 5, 2018, the contents of which expressly are incorporated into this Resolution.   

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 15



Packet Page 16



Packet Page 17



Packet Page 18



Packet Page 19



Packet Page 20



Packet Page 21



Packet Page 22



Packet Page 23



Packet Page 24



Packet Page 25



Packet Page 26



Packet Page 27



Packet Page 28



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-002 

AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF LITIGATION WITH NATIONAL GRID  
OVER DAMAGE TO SWITCHGEAR LOCATED NEAR 300 – 3RD STREET 

WHEREAS, Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation d/b/a National Grid (“National Grid”) 
filed a notice of claim against the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) on June 9, 2015, 
and commenced litigation in Niagara County Supreme Court by filing a summons and complaint 
under index No. E158802/2016 on June 1, 2016, to recover for damages to an electrical 
switchgear located near 300 – 3rd Street which allegedly resulted from a water main break on 
March 21, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board denies any fault or negligence in connection with the 
underlying incident, but further litigation will require a substantial investment of Water Board 
resources and the Water Board’s best interests therefore are served by compromising 
National Grid’s claim to avoid the further cost of litigation;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay the 
sum of $3,250 to Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation d/b/a National Grid as settlement in full 
of the case Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation d/b/a National Grid vs. Niagara Falls Public 
Water Board, Niagara County Supreme Court Index No. E158802/2016, on the condition that 
National Grid executes a general release acknowledging that no party admits fault for the 
underlying incident. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
General Counsel 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board 

Packet Page 29



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-003 

REPAIRS TO CHEMICAL STORAGE TANK 216 

WHEREAS, chemical storage tank No. 216 at the wastewater treatment plant requires 
certain repairs to remain in serviceable condition; and 

WHEREAS, Niagara Falls Water Board staff have obtained a quote from An-Cor DKG 
dated November 12, 2018 to perform the necessary repairs for a price of $12,131;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay to 
An-Cor DKG up to $12,131 to complete necessary repairs to chemical storage tank No. 216. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board 

Packet Page 30



Packet Page 31



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-004 

REPAIR OF WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 18 INCH WET WELL VALVE 

WHEREAS, an 18 inch wet well valve at the wastewater treatment plant is in poor 
condition and must be repaired or replaced; and 

WHEREAS, Mollenberg-Betz, Inc., has presented a quote dated October 31, 2018 in the 
amount of $10,600 to erect scaffolding to gain access to the valve and to repair it, if upon closer 
inspection replacement is not required;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay to 
Mollenberg-Betz, Inc., up to $10,600 for the erection of scaffolding to access the 18-inch wet 
well valve at the wastewater treatment plant, and to complete repairs if feasible. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board 

Packet Page 32



Packet Page 33



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-005 

ADDING ADDITIONAL LIFT STATION SCADA FUNCTIONALITY 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has seven lift stations that 
currently are manually activated; and  

WHEREAS, adding supervisory control and data acquisition (“SCADA”) control to 
those lift stations will allow them to be activated more rapidly when needed, and will reduce 
certain labor expenses; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2018-07-016, the Water Board authorized work 
by Ferguson Electric Service Co., Inc., to add SCADA functionality to the lift stations; and 

WHEREAS, since the lift station SCADA work was approved, Water Board staff 
identified improvements to the planned work, which will come at an additional cost; and 

WHEREAS, this additional work includes adding to the lift stations: (1) resettable run 
meters; (2) variable frequency drives on the pumps at lift stations 1, 4, and 6 for eliminating 
check valve slamming and bursting of pipe fittings, which ruin the check valve ball; 
(3) ultrasonic level meters for accurate level sensing and variable frequency drive control; and 
(4) additional programming and control for by-pass pumps; and 

WHEREAS, some of this work will be performed by Zeller AC&E as a subcontractor to 
Ferguson Electric, and the total estimated additional cost of the work is $37,300; and 

WHEREAS, this additional work will avoid future maintenance expenses, help reduce 
labor costs associated with lift station control, and allow more precise use of the lift stations to 
minimize problems including basement flooding and combined sewer overflows; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

Packet Page 34



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes the Executive 
Director to spend up to an additional $37,300 on lift station SCADA improvements, in addition 
to the funds previously authorized in Resolution No. 2018-07-016. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board 

Packet Page 35



Packet Page 36



Packet Page 37



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-006 

2019 MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board has, by past practice, approved the schedule 
for the work sessions and the regular meetings by resolution prior to the next year of operation; 
and     

WHEREAS, the Water Board must schedule an annual meeting pursuant to Article V, 
Section 1 of its By-Laws; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the calendar of work sessions, business meetings, and the annual 
meeting that is attached hereto is hereby adopted by the Niagara Falls Water Board for 2019. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
General Counsel and Secretary 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
No monetary impact 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board 

Packet Page 38



5815 Buffalo Avenue ∙Niagara Falls ∙ New York ∙14304  ∙ 716 283-9770  ∙ FAX 716 283-9748 
www.nfwb.org 

TO: All Interested Parties 

FROM: Niagara Falls Water Board 

RE:  Niagara Falls Water Board Work Session and  
Business Meeting Dates for the calendar year 2019 

The Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has scheduled the dates below for its 2019 work 
sessions and the regular business meetings.  Meetings are held at the Water Board offices located 
at 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara Falls, New York, and begin at 5:00 p.m.  The regular meeting 
held March 25, 2019 shall be deemed the Annual Meeting pursuant to Article V, Section 1 of the 
Water Board’s by-laws.  Any changes to this schedule or special meetings shall be announced to 
the public pursuant to the Open Meetings Law.   

Work Sessions: Business Meetings: 

January 7, 2019 January 14, 2019 

February 25, 2019*  February 25, 2019* 

March 18, 2019 March 25, 2019 

April 15, 2019  April 22, 2019  

May 13, 2019  May 20, 2019  

June 17, 2019  June 24, 2019 

July 15, 2019  July 22, 2019 

August - recess  August - recess 

September 16, 2019  September 23, 2019 

October 21, 2019  October 28, 2019 

November 18, 2019                 November 25, 2019 

December 9, 2019  December 16, 2019 

* Working session followed immediately by business meeting. 

       By:   _________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Packet Page 39



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-007 

AWARDING BID FOR GRANULATED ACTIVE CARBON SUPPLY AND REMOVAL 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) was assisted by the City of 
Niagara Falls Purchasing Department in soliciting bids for granulated activated carbon supply 
and removal; and 

WHEREAS, City of Niagara Falls Purchasing has tabulated the resulting bids and 
identified Carbon Activated Corporation USA as the low bidder, as described in the attached 
memorandum dated November 16, 2018;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby awards the bid for granulated 
activated carbon supply and removal to Carbon Activated Corporation USA at the prices 
indicated on the attached memorandum dated November 16, 2018, the contents of which 
expressly are incorporated into this Resolution.   

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 40



Packet Page 41



Packet Page 42



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-008 

ACCEPTING $2,760,000  
NYS WATER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ACT GRANT 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has been notified by the 
NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation on behalf of Governor Andrew M. Cuomo that the 
Water Board has been awarded a NYS Water Infrastructure Improvement Act (“WIIA”) grant in 
the amount of $2,760,000; and 

WHEREAS, this WIIA grant will help support the Water Board’s replacement of 
outdated water mains and lead service connections at various locations within the 
City of Niagara Falls, a project that has been given Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Project 
No. 18588; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated total project cost is $5,495,000 and the Water Board is 
committed to funding the balance of the project not funded by the WIIA grant; and 

WHEREAS, no later than December 7, 2018, the Water Board has been requested to 
acknowledge and accept the WIIA grant award and to confirm its intent to proceed with the 
project; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes its 
Executive Director to acknowledge and accept the $2,760,000 NYS Water Infrastructure 
Improvement Act Grant Award, Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Project No. 18588, and to 
take the steps required to initiate the water main and lead service line replacement project. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 43



Packet Page 44



Packet Page 45

skrull
Ellipse

skrull
Ellipse

skrull
Ellipse

skrull
Ellipse

skrull
Text Box
8/1/19

skrull
Text Box
12/1/19

skrull
Text Box
4/1/20

skrull
Text Box
10/31/20



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-009 

AUTHORIZING CONTRACTUAL ASSISTANCE – GRADE 4 LICENSE 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board is required to contract with an individual or 
entity who possesses a New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
(“NYSDEC”) Grade 4 Wastewater Operator Certification until such time as one of its employees 
secures a Grade 4 license; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has agreed with NYSDEC to contract for the services of a 
Grade 4 Certification holder for a minimum of 20 hours per week; and 

WHEREAS, Kenneth Maving, an employee of GHD, possesses such a Certification, is 
acceptable to the NYSDEC, and satisfactorily has been performing the duties required of a 
Grade 4 Certificate holder at a rate of $140 per hour, which is billed by GHD; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board is providing training, tutoring, and other resources in order 
to facilitate the acquisition of a Grade 4 Certification by one of its employees as soon as 
possible; and 

WHEREAS, it is not known precisely how long it will take for a Water Board employee 
to obtain a Grade 4 Certification, and in the meantime sufficient funds must be appropriated to 
pay for Mr. Maving’s services, separate and apart from the other professional engineering and 
consulting projects with which GHD is involved for the Water Board; 

*   CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE   * 

Packet Page 46



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, the Executive Director is 
hereby authorized to continue the agreement with GHD for Kenneth Maving to act on a 
contractual basis as the Grade 4 licensee for a minimum of 20 hours per week, until such time as 
a Water Board employee secures New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
Grade 4 Wastewater Operator Certification, and the expenditure of up to $75,000 for this 
purpose hereby is authorized.   

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if the funds authorized by this resolution are 
exhausted prior to a Water Board employee securing the required Grade 4 license, a request shall 
be made by the Executive Director for the Water Board to approve additional funds by further 
resolution. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 47



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-010 

AUTHORIZING PROCUREMENT OF  
MOBILE METER DATA COLLECTOR APPARATUS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) invested in modernizing 
water meters throughout its system and the majority of the meters now can be read remotely 
using a mobile data collector mounted in a Water Board vehicle; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board is exploring options for monthly meter reading and/or 
billing; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board’s service area is divided into three zones, but the 
Water Board has just two vehicles outfitted with the equipment necessary to perform mobile 
meter data collection; and 

WHEREAS, having a third vehicle equipped with mobile meter data collector apparatus 
is necessary before monthly meter reading and/or billing would be possible, and it further is 
deemed appropriate to provide a backup meter data collection vehicle in the event one of the two 
existing meter data collection vehicles is out of service; 

*   CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE   * 

Packet Page 48



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes the following 
procurements which are required to equip an existing Water Board fleet vehicle to remotely 
collect water meter data: 

1. Purchase of a mobile data collector with data logging and necessary software from 
Ti Sales, Inc., for an amount not to exceed $9,833.18; 

2. Purchase of necessary mounting equipment and wiring, plus installation, from Haleens 
Automotive for an amount not to exceed $1,104.48; 

3. Purchase of a laptop to be mounted in the vehicle which is necessary to interpret and 
store meter data from a pre-bid government contract for an amount not to exceed $900; 
and 

4. Purchase of a necessary in-vehicle mount for the laptop for an amount not to exceed 
$250. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Operations 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 49



Marcus Anten(716) 283-9748(716) 286-4371NIAG7

Territory ManagerJob NameJob LocationFaxTelephoneCustomer Number

Niagara Falls NY 14304

5815 Buffalo Ave.

Niagara Falls Water Board

Niagara Falls NY 14304-3832

5815 Buffalo Ave.

Niagara Falls Water BoardSold To: Ship To:

11/20/2018Date

Bob ReidQuoted To

QTE0033564Quote

286556NET 30AllowedDirect01/19/2019

Master NumberTermsFreightEstimated DeliveryExpires

ExtensionPriceQuantityDescriptionItem Number

$9,166.30$9,166.301Neptune MRX920 Mobile Data Collector V4 With RF Data Logging
Feature

MRX920V4

$666.88$666.881Neptune Mapping & Mobility Module - 1 Year Subscription12699-100

Shipping direct from vendor

Date:______________Signature:____________________________________

If you are in agreement with this quote and wish to order, please sign, date, and fax back to 978-443-7600
or email us at orders@tisales.com

Joe DanaQuoted By:

1

$9,833.18Total Due

$0.00Tax

$0.00Other Charges

$9,833.18Merchandise

Visit our website @ tisales.com

Packet Page 50



Packet Page 51



Packet Page 52



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-011 

2019 COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has employed 
The Martin Group to assist it with communications services for approximately 18 months; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board’s communications requirements have evolved, and it 
desires to reduce spending on communications, marketing, public relations, and advertising 
activity in 2019; and 

WHEREAS, The Martin Group has agreed to work at blended hourly rate of $150 
covering both junior- and senior-level advisement to assist the Water Board with the following 
services, in order of priority: 

• Crisis communications counsel, coordination, and advisement; 
• Media relations support, interview coordination, and response compilation; and 
• Drafting of media releases and statements;  

*   CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE   * 

Packet Page 53



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes the 
Executive Director to utilize the services of The Martin Group at a rate of $150 per hour for the 
following: 

• Crisis communications counsel, coordination, and advisement; 
• Media relations support, interview coordination, and response compilation; and 
• Drafting of media releases and statements; 

AND IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total amount to be paid to 
The Martin Group in 2019 shall not exceed $12,000 without further Board resolution. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 54



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-012 

AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RONALD CUNNINGHAM  

WHEREAS, Ronald Cunningham disputed certain Niagara Falls Water Board 
(“Water Board”) charges for service at 559 – 19th Street; and  

WHEREAS, the Water Board under its general authority to compromise and settle 
claims arising from contracts may waive the imposition of penalties arising from a claimant’s 
nonpayment of water rents when compromising a claim asserted by the claimant; and  

WHEREAS, Section 1230-f, Title 10-B, Article 5 of the Public Authorities Law 
authorizes the Water Board to negotiate, compromise and settle claims when there is sufficient 
consideration for the compromise of a claim and if the parties in good faith advance opposing 
contentions; and 

WHEREAS, as of November 20, 2018 the outstanding balance for 559 – 19th Street was 
$3,038.04 for water and sewer charges plus $536.33 for penalties;   

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

Packet Page 55



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Water Board’s Director of Financial Services hereby is authorized 
to execute an agreement with Ronald Cunningham for the payment of the outstanding charges 
for service to 559 – 19th Street, in a form approved by General Counsel and containing the 
following substantive terms: 

1. The balance of the water and sewer charges due as of November 20, 2018 is adjusted to 
$2,278.53; 

2. This balance may be paid in equal installments over a term not to exceed 18 months; 
3. All new bills shall be paid on time; 
4. Upon satisfaction of the foregoing conditions, the accrued interest and penalties for 559 – 

19th Street shall be waived;  
5. The agreement shall be executed by December 7, 2018 or the settlement authorized by 

this resolution is revoked; and 
6. Should Mr. Cunningham default on the agreement, all outstanding charges, interest, and 

penalties immediately shall come due and water service may be terminated. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Financial Services 
General Counsel  

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 56



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-013 

AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH JABRIL SHAREEF  

WHEREAS, Jabril Shareef disputed certain Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) 
charges for service at 411 Hyde Park Blvd.; and  

WHEREAS, the Water Board under its general authority to compromise and settle 
claims arising from contracts may waive the imposition of penalties arising from a claimant’s 
nonpayment of water rents when compromising a claim asserted by the claimant; and  

WHEREAS, Section 1230-f, Title 10-B, Article 5 of the Public Authorities Law 
authorizes the Water Board to negotiate, compromise and settle claims when there is sufficient 
consideration for the compromise of a claim and if the parties in good faith advance opposing 
contentions; and 

WHEREAS, as of November 20, 2018 the outstanding balance for 411 Hyde Park Blvd. 
was $16,132.43 for water and sewer charges plus $1,712.11 for penalties;   

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

Packet Page 57



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Water Board’s Director of Financial Services hereby is authorized 
to execute an agreement with Jabril Shareef for the payment of the outstanding charges for 
service to 411 Hyde Park Blvd., in a form approved by General Counsel and containing the 
following substantive terms: 

1. The balance of the water and sewer charges due as of November 20, 2018 is adjusted to 
$12,099.32; 

2. This balance may be paid in equal installments over a term not to exceed 36 months; 
3. All new bills shall be paid on time; 
4. Upon satisfaction of the foregoing conditions, the accrued interest and penalties for 

411 Hyde Park Blvd. shall be waived;  
5. The agreement shall be executed by December 7, 2018 or the settlement authorized by 

this resolution is revoked; and 
6. Should Mr. Shareef default on the agreement, all outstanding charges, interest, and 

penalties immediately shall come due and water service may be terminated. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Financial Services 
General Counsel  

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 58



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-014 

AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH TAMAR SKRLIN  

WHEREAS, Tamar Skrlin disputed certain Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) 
charges for service at 1317 Michigan Ave.; and  

WHEREAS, the Water Board under its general authority to compromise and settle 
claims arising from contracts may waive the imposition of penalties arising from a claimant’s 
nonpayment of water rents when compromising a claim asserted by the claimant; and  

WHEREAS, Section 1230-f, Title 10-B, Article 5 of the Public Authorities Law 
authorizes the Water Board to negotiate, compromise and settle claims when there is sufficient 
consideration for the compromise of a claim and if the parties in good faith advance opposing 
contentions; and 

WHEREAS, as the charges in dispute for 1317 Michigan Ave. were $1,866.68 for water 
and sewer charges plus $77.51 for penalties;   

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

Packet Page 59



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Water Board’s Director of Financial Services hereby is authorized 
to execute an agreement with Tamae Skrlin for the payment of the disputed charges for service to 
1317 Michigan Ave., in a form approved by General Counsel and containing the following 
substantive terms: 

1. The balance of the disputed water and sewer charges is adjusted to $1,400.01; 
2. This balance be paid by December 7, 2018; 
3. All new bills shall be paid on time; 
4. Upon satisfaction of the foregoing conditions, $77.51 in accrued interest and penalties for 

1317 Michigan Ave. shall be waived; and  
5. Should Ms. Skrlin default on the agreement, all outstanding charges, interest, and 

penalties immediately shall come due and water service may be terminated, if payment is 
overdue. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Financial Services 
General Counsel  

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 60



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-015 

AWARD BID FOR PICKUP, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF  
ALUMINUM-BASED RESIDUALS FROM WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) water treatment plant 
(“WTP”) has outdoor sludge beds where it mixes non-toxic chemical coagulants into its raw 
water in order to settle out trace contaminants in the water prior to that water being further 
treated inside the WTP; and 

WHEREAS, from time to time the resulting residuals, commonly known as alum or 
aluminum sludge, accumulate to the point where they must be removed from the outdoor sludge 
beds and disposed of; and 

WHEREAS, an invitation to bid for project no. 2018004, Pickup, Hauling, and Disposal 
of Aluminum-Based Residuals for the period from December 12, 2018 to December 14, 2019 
was issued on behalf of the Water Board by Clark Patterson Lee engineers; and 

WHEREAS, one bid was received from Modern Disposal Services on 
November 20, 2018, with a total base bid of $165,824; and  

WHEREAS, the actual cost of the service will depend on the total quantity of materials 
actually removed; and 

WHEREAS, Clark Patterson Lee recommends awarding the bid to Modern Disposal 
Services, Inc., as the lowest responsible bidder; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

Packet Page 61



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to contract with Modern Disposal Services, Inc., for Pickup, Hauling, and 
Disposal of Aluminum-Based Residuals from the water treatment plant for the period of 
December 12, 2018 through December 14, 2019. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 62



Packet Page 63



Packet Page 64



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-016 

VEHICLE MARKING AND GPS TRACKING 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) operates a substantial 
number of wheeled vehicles; and  

WHEREAS, the Water Board has a responsibility to exercise oversight and management 
with respect to Water Board property; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has determined that establishing clear standards and 
requirements for the marking and GPS tracking of its vehicles will assist with the management 
and protection of Water Board assets and is in the best interest of the Water Board and its 
ratepayers;  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

Packet Page 65



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that within 30 days, all Niagara Falls Water Board wheeled vehicles 
(including trucks, SUV’s, sedans, and equipment such as backhoes) with a gross vehicle weight 
in excess of 2,000 pounds shall: 

1. Be equipped with a functional, non-removable GPS tracking device; and 
2. All Water Board trucks, SUV’s, and equipment that are registered with the NYS 

Department of Motor Vehicles shall bear official Niagara Falls Water Board license 
plates; and 

3. All Water Board trucks, SUV’s, and equipment shall bear the Water Board emblem on 
the driver’s door and the front passenger door, with said emblem to be clearly visible and 
to be a decal that is not easily removed (not magnetic), and all trucks should have a 
reflective stripe for marking and visibility. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
Director of Operations 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 66



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-11-017 

MOTOR VEHICLE USE POLICY 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has a responsibility to 
exercise oversight and management with respect to the Water Board passenger vehicles; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board desires, by resolution, to adopt a vehicle use policy and to 
direct its management to enforce the vehicle use policy;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Water Board hereby adopts as a Board policy the attached vehicle 
use policy, and directs the Executive Director, Director of Operations, and Director of 
Administrative services to enforce the policy through the disciplinary process. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
Director of Operations 

On November 26, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

Packet Page 67



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD 
MOTOR VEHICLE USE POLICY 

Purpose of Water Board Policy:

This policy is adopted pursuant to Niagara Falls Water Board Resolution No. 2018-11-017.  The 
purpose of this policy is to set forth the rules governing the use of motor vehicles owned, leased 
or rented by or in the possession of the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Board”). 

Scope of Application:

This policy applies to all employees of the Board operating any motor vehicle owned, leased or 
rented by or in the possession of the Board (“Board vehicle”).  Exceptions to this policy must be 
authorized by the Executive Director or the Board.  

Management, including the Executive Director, Director of Operations, and Director of 
Administrative services, are required by Board resolution to enforce this policy through the 
disciplinary process. 

Rules Governing Use of Board Vehicles:

1.  Only employees of the Board who possess a valid New York State driver’s license may 
operate a Board vehicle and employees may be required periodically to provide proof of the 
same.  Non-employees are not authorized to operate Board vehicles and employees may not 
permit such use.  Board vehicles may not be taken out of state without advance written approval 
of the Executive Director or his or her designee.   

2.  Board vehicles may not be used to transport non-employees of the Board, including family 
members, unless such transportation is directly related to Board business.  Transport of any 
non-employee that involves travel out of the Western New York area or an overnight stay must 
be must authorized by the Executive Director or his or her designee in writing.    

3.  Unless specifically authorized by a Water Board contract or resolution, no Water Board 
employee shall be permitted to take home a Water Board vehicle overnight. 

4.  Drivers must observe and obey all motor vehicle and traffic laws, rules, and regulations, 
including complying with the New York State law prohibiting cell phone use while operating a 
motor vehicle, unless a hands-free device is used.   

5.  The driver and all passengers must wear seatbelts.   

6.  Smoking is not permitted in Board vehicles.   

7.  Employee may not operate Board vehicles under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, or 
prescription drugs or medications that may interfere with effective and safe motor vehicle 
operation.   

Packet Page 68



Page 2 of 2

8.  Employees are responsible for operating Board vehicles in a safe and proper manner. 

9.  An employee involved in an accident must immediately notify the appropriate police 
authority.  An employee must also notify his or her supervisor as soon as possible if involved in 
an accident or if issued a parking or traffic ticket while operating a Board vehicle, but in no case 
later than 24 hours after the incident.      

10.  Board vehicles may not be used for personal purposes.   

11.  Employees must report any damage to or any malfunction of a Board vehicle immediately to 
their supervisor.    

12.  Any Board employee who operates a Board vehicle and who is arrested for or charged with 
a motor vehicle offense for which the punishment includes suspension or revocation of the 
employee’s driver license must notify his or her supervisor immediately when practicable, but in 
no case late than 24 hours.  If any other employee is asked to operate a Board vehicle and has 
been so arrested or charged the employee shall so inform his or her supervisor at such time.   

13.  Any employee with the following convictions and/or violations within the last three years 
may be barred from operating a Board vehicle:  (a) driving while intoxicated; (b) driving under 
the influence; (c) negligent homicide; (d) operating with a suspended or revoked license; (e) 
assault with a motor vehicle; (f) operating a motor vehicle without the owners consent; (g) 
permitting an unlicensed driver to drive; (h) reckless driving; (j) hit and run and/or leaving the 
scene of an accident; and (k) operating an unregistered motor vehicle.  Employees operating 
Board vehicles must notify their supervisor of any such convictions and/or violations. 

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 

Packet Page 69


	1  November 2018 Meeting Agenda
	2  Draft NFWB Meeting Minutes - October 2018
	3  Personnel Actions
	4  2018-11-001 - Cooperative Chemical Bid
	5   Cooperative Chemical Bid Board Memo and Official Tally Sheet
	6  2018-11-002 -  Settle National Grid
	7  2018-11-003 -  Chemical Tank 216 Repairs
	8  11-003 - Chemical Tank Repair
	9  2018-11-004 -  Wet Well Valve Repair
	10  11-004 - Wet Well Valve Repair Quote
	11  2018-11-005 -  SCADA Lift Station Work
	12  SCADA Proposal
	13  2018-11-006 -  2019 Board Meeting Schedule
	14  Working Session & Regular Meeting Dates 2019
	15  2018-11-007 - Granulated Activated Carbon Bid
	16  Granular Activated Carbon Agenda Item and Tally Sheet 111618
	17  2018-11-008 - Accept $2.76 Million WIIA Grant
	18  2018-11-14 - EFC Letter RE WIIA Grant Award
	19  2018-11-009 - Authorizing Contractual Assistance - Grade 4 License
	20  2018-11-010 - Authorizing Procurement of Mobile Meter Data Collector
	21  Meter Data Collector Costs
	1 QTE0033564 - Ti-SALES Quote
	2 Haleens Quote
	3 Laptop Mount

	22  2018-11-011 - 2019 Communications Services
	23  2018-11-012 - Settle Bill Dispute with Ronald Cunningham
	24  2018-11-013 - Settle Bill Dispute with Jabril Shareef
	25  2018-11-014 - Settle Bill Dispute with Tamar Skrlin
	26  2018-11-015 - WTP Residuals Disposal
	27  Ltr of Recommendation 11-21-18
	28  2018-11-016 - Vehicle Marking and GPS
	29  2018-11-017 - Vehicle Use Policy
	30  Draft of Board Adopted NFWB Motor Vehicle Use Policy



